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Kinh gii: S& Giao dich Chirng khoan Viét Nam/ S& Giao dich Chimg khoan Ha Noi/
S¢& Giao dich Chung khoan thanh pho Ho Chi Minh
To: Vietnam Exchange/ Hanoi Stock Exchange/ Hochiminh Stock Exchange

1. Tén tb chic / Organization name: Ngan hang TMCP Hang Hai Viét Nam/ Vietnam
Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

- M3 chimg khoan/ Securities Symbol: MSB

- Dia chi tru s¢ chinh/ Address: S6 54A Nguyén Chi Thanh, Phudng Lang Thuong, Quan
Péng Pa, Thanh phd Ha Nbi, Viét Nam/ No. 54A Nguyen Chi Thanh, Lang Thuong
Ward, Dong Da disirict, Hanoi, Victnam

- Dién thoai/ Telephone: 024-37718989

2. Noéi dung cong bb théng tin/ Content of Information disclosure:

Coéng bo Béo cédo tai chinh Quy 4/2024/ Information disclosure on 4Q/2024 Finance
Statement.
(D41 véi trudng hop dinh chinh hodc thay thé thong tin d3 cong bo can giai trinh rd nguyén
nhin dinh chinh hodc thay thé)/In case of correction or replacement of previously
disclosed information, explanation is needed)

3. Théng tin ndy da dwgce cong b trén trang théng tin dién tir cta cong ty vao ngiy /4
/1/2025 tai dudng dan https://www.msb.com.vi/vi/nha-dau-tu.htm] This information
was published on the company’s website on 24.11/2025, as in the link
https://www.msb.com.vn/vi/nha-dau-tu.html




Ching (61 xin cam két cac thong tin cong bo trén day l1a dung su that va hoan toan chiu
trach nhiém trude phap ludt vé ndi dung cac thong tin da cong bo/We hereby certify that
the information provided is true and correct and we bear the full responsibility to the law.

Pai dién tb chire
Tai lidu dink kém/ Organization representative
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Ngan hang TMCP Hang Hai Viét Nam (MSB)
MSB . 54A Nguyén Chi Thanh, Quan Bdng Da, Ha Noi
C ) _ Tel: (024) 3771 8989 + Fax: (024) 3771 8899

So

8 8 ?2025/(? V- TGE5 Ha Néi, ngayl@hang 01 nam 2025
Hanoi, January 2025

V/iv: Bé  sung gidi trinh nguyén nhdn lgi nhudn

sau thué thay déi tir 10% so v6i ndm trieée/cimg ky ndm trude/

Additional explanation of the reason for profit after tax change by more than 10% compared to
previous year/same period of previous year

Pursuant to Circular 96/2020/TT-BTC dated 16 November 2020 of the Ministry

Finance on guidance on information disclosure on the stock market:

Kinh giti: Uy ban Chirng khoin Nha nwéc

To: State Securities Commission of Vietnam

Thue hién Thong tr 96/2020/TT-BTC ngay 16/11/2020 ctia B Tai chinh vé viéc huéng Ve
dAn cong bb thong tin trén thi trudng chimg khoan:

Ngéan hang TMCP Hang Hai Viét Nam (MSB) xin giai trinh nguyén nhén lgi nhuén sau _q
thué thu nhap doanh nghiép tai Bdo céo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh Quy 4 nam 2024 thay

dbi trén 10% so véi ciing k¥ nim 2023 va nguyén nhén loi nhun sau thué nam 2024 thay ddi
trén 10% so v4i ndm 2023 nhu sau:

Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank (MSB) would like to explain the reason

why the profit after tax in the statement of profit or loss for the fourth quarter of 2024 changed
by more than 10% compared to the same period in 2023 and the reason why the profit after tax
in 2024 changed by more than 10% compared to 2023 as follows:

1.

Loi nhuén sau thué tai B4o céo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh riéng Quy 4 nim 2024
ting 1.096.398 triéu dong (218,83%) so v6i cing ky nidm 2023, chit yéu do thu nhap 14i
thudn ting 721.455 triéu ddng (30,97%) va 13i/(15) thudn tir hoat dong khic ting
733.032 triéu dong (241,89%).

Profit after tax in the separate statement of profit or loss for the fourth quarter of 2024
increased by VND 1,096,398 million (218.83%) compared to the same period in 2023,

mainly due to an increase in net interest and similar income of VND 721,455 million -
(30.97%) and net gains/(losses) from other operating activities of VND 733,032 million.

(30.97%).

Loi nhudn sau thué tai Béo cdo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh riéng nim 2024 ting

873.606 triéu ddng (18,78%) so v6i nam 2023, chit yéu do thu nhép 15i thudn ting

975.133 tridu ddng (10,85%) va 141/(18) thuén tir hoat d6ng khac ting 1.345.749 triéu
ddng (1.094,98%), trong khi 14i/15 thudn tir mua bén chimg khoan dAu tr giam 238.321



triéu ddng (46,56%), 14i/(16) thudn tir hoat déng dich vu giam 243.613 triéu ddng
(15,36%) so v6i ndm 2023. Ngoai ra, chi phi hoat d6ng ting 348.444 triéu dong (7,45%)
va chi phi dy phong ting 412.812 triéu dong (27,31%) so véi ndm 2023.

Profit after tax in the separate statement of profit or loss for 2024 increased by VND
873,606 million (18.78%) compared to 2023, mainly due to an increase in net interest
and similar income of VND 975,133 million (10.85%) and net gains/(losses) from other
operating activities increased by VND 1,345,749 million (1,094.98%), net gains from
investment securities decreased by VND 238,321 million (46.56%), net fee and
commission income decreased by VND 243,613 million (15.36%) compared to 2023. In
addition, operating expenses increased by VND 348,444 million (7.45%) and credit loss
expenses increased by VND 412,812 million (27.31%) compared to 2023.

. Loi nhuan sau thué tai Bao co Kkét qua hoat dong kinh doanh hgp nhét Quy 4 nim
2024 ting 1.133.268 triéu ddng (234,29%) so vé6i cling ky nam 2023, chu yéu do thu
nhép 141 thun ting 756.439 triéu ddng (31,75%) va 15i/(18) thuin tir hoat déng khéc
ting 736.560 triéu ddng (277,45%).

Profit after tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the fourth quarter of
2024 increased by VND 1,133,268 million (234.29%) compared to the same period in
2023, mainly due to an increase in net interest and similar income of VND 756,439
million (31.75%) and net gains/(losses) from other operating activities of VND 736,560
million (277.45%).

. Loi nhuén sau thué tai Béo céo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh hop nhit nim 2024 ting
875.163 triéu ddng (18,84%) so v&i nam 2023, chit yéu do thu nhap 14i thudn ting
1.054.549 triéu ddng (11,48%) va 14i/(15) thudn tir hoat dong khac ting 1.391.762 triéu
ddng (1.398,36%), trong khi 14i/15 thuln tir mua ban chimg khoén dau tur giam 238.321
triéu ddng (46,56%), 14i/(15) thudn tir hoat déng dich vu giam 242.970 triéu ddng
(15,21%) so v&i nam 2023. Ngoai ra, chi phi hoat ddng tang 417.604 tri¢u dong (8,68%)
va chi phi dy phong ting 467.717 triéu ddng (28,93%) so véi nim 2023.

Profit after tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for 2024 increased by
VIND 875,163 million (18.84%) compared to 2023, mainly due to an increase in net
interest and similar income of VND 1,054,549 million (11.48%) and net gains/(losses)
from other operating activities increased by VND 1,391,762 million (1,398.36%), net
gains from investment securities decreased by VND 238,321 million (46.56%), net fee
and commission income decreased by VND 242,970 million (15.21%) compared to
2023. In addition, operating expenses increased by VND 417,604 million (8.68%) and
credit loss expenses increased by VND 467,717 million (28.93%) compared to 2023.



Trén day 1a giai trinh cia MSB
Above is MSB's explanation.
Trén trong.

Sincerely!

Nvoi nhin/ Recipients:
- Nhu kinh giri/ As directed;
- Chu tich HDQT, BKS/
Chairman, Board of Supervision;
- Téng Gidm doc/
Chief Executive Officer;
- Luru BCTC; Vin thu/
Stored in the FRD,; Documents.

TL. TONG GIAM POC
Authorized of Chief Executive Officer
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

GENERAL INFORMATION

THE BANK INFORMATION

Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank') is a joint stock commetcial bank
incorporated and registered in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.

The Bank was established in accordance with Banking Operating License No. 0001/NH-GP issued by
the State Bank of Vietnam ("SBV"} on 08 June 1891 which was supplemented in accordance with
Decision No. 2238/QD-NHNN dated 08 October 2024 with the operating duration of 99 years. The
Bank is operating under Business Registration Certificate No. 0200124891 with the 26" amended
Business Registration dated 13 January 2023,

The current principal activities of the Bank are to perform banking services including mobilizing and
receiving short, medium and long-term deposits from organizations and individuals; making short,
medium and long-term loans to organizations and individuals based on the nature and capability of
the Bank’s capital; conducting foreign exchange transactions; international trade finance services;
discounting of commercial papers, bonds and other valuable papers; conducting payments and
treasury services; performing capital contributions, share purchases, securities investments and other
banking services as approved by the SBV.

Charter capital

As at 31 December 2024, charter capital of the Bank was VND 26,000,000 million (31 December
2023: VND 20,000,000 million).

Location and operational network

The Bank’s Head Office is located at 54A Nguyen Chi Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward, Dong Da
District, Hanoi, Vietnam.

As at 31 December 2024, the Bank has one (01) Head Office, sixty-two (62} branches, one hundred

and ninety eight (198) transaction offices nationwide (as at 31 December 2023, the Bank has one (01)
Head Office, sixty-two (62) branches, two hundred and one {201) transaction offices nationwide).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors of the Bank as at 31 December 2024 are as follows:

Name Position

Mr. Tran Anh Tuan Chairman

Mr. Tran Xuan Quang Vice - Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Hoang An Vice - Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Heang Linh Member

Ms. Le Thi Lien Member

Mr. Vo Tan Long Member

Mr. Ta Ngoc Da Independent Member

BOARD OF SUPERVISION

Members of the Board of Supervision of the Bank as at 31 December 2024 are as follows:

Name Position
Ms. Pham Thi Thanh Head of the Board of Supervision
Ms. Chu Thi Dam Member
Ms. Le Thanh Ha Member



Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

Members of the Executive Council of the Bank as at 31 December 2024 are as follows:

Name

Position

Mr. Nguyen Hoang Linh
Mr. Nguyen Phi Hung
Ms. Nguyen Huong Loan

Mr. Nguyen The Minh
Ms. Nguyen Thi My Hanh
Ms. Dinh Thi Ta Uyen

Mr. Bui Duc Quang

Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Hang
Mr. Nguyen Quoc Khanh
Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Cuong
Ms, Lai Thanh Mai

Mr. Duong Ngoc Dung
Ms. Nguyen Ha Thanh
Mr. Nguyen Tien Duc

Mr. Nguyen Viet Son

Ms. Nguyen Thu Trang

Chief Executive Officer

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Deputy Chief Executive Officer -

Head of Financial Institution Banking Division
Deputy Chief Executive Officer -

Head of Corporate Banking Division

Deputy Chief Executive Officer -

Head of Retail Banking Division

Deputy Chief Executive Officer -

Head of Strategy Division

Head of Credit Management Banking Division
Head of Financial Management

Chief Technology Officer

Chief Human Resources Officer

Head of Legal and Compliance Division
Chief Marketing Officer

Chief Operating Officer

Chief Risk Officer

Head of Strategic Corporate Banking Division
Head of Office and Internal Services Division
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2024

31 December 2024

BO2/TCTD-HN

31 December 2023

Nofes VIND million VND million
ASSETS
Cash, gold and gemstones 5 1,203,088 939,629
Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam
(*SBV™) 6 5,494,784 4,589,199
Due from banks 7 60,965,204 61,149,694
Placements with other credit institutions (“Cls”) 54,279,040 51,384,709
Loans to other Cls 6,686,164 9,764,985
l.oans to customers 175,238,795 146,782,639
Loans to customers 9 178,278,251 149,145,386
Provision for credit losses of loans to
customers 10 {3,039,456) (2,362,747)
Investment securifies 11 65,569,856 37,880,373
Available-for-sale securities 65,604,781 37,897,490
Provision for investment securities (34,925) (17, 117)
Long-term investments 12 12,030 10,036
Other long-term investments 17,049 10,036
Provision for long-term investments {5,019) -
Fixed assets 432,744 402,736
Tangible fixed assets 13 232,437 202,533
Cost 746,188 661,129
Accumulated depreciation (513,751) (458,596)
Intangible fixed assets 14 200,307 200,203
Cost 666,076 630,943
Accumulated amortization (465,768) {430,740)
Other assets 15 11,260,642 15,251,532
Receivables 5,696,276 8,480,027
interest and fee receivables 4,897,832 5,065,400
Other assets 710,811 1,749,755
- In which: Goodwill 16 5,142 15,124
Provision for other assets {(44,077) (43,650)
320,177,143 267,005,838

TOTAL ASSETS




Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BO2/TCTD-HN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION {continued)
as at 31 December 2024

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes VND million VIND million
LIABILITIES
Borrowings from the Governmenf and the
5BV 17 9,203,519 1,012,533
Depasits and borrowings from the
Government and the SBY 9,203,519 1,012,533
Due to banks 18 92,218,519 85,553,514
Deposits from other Cls 59,798,190 54,484 312
Borrowings from other Cls 32,420,329 31,069,202
Customer deposits 19 154,612,451 132,350,131
Derivative financial instruments 8 730,128 263,356
Valuable papers issued 20 21,210,596 8,991,415
Other liabilities 5,384,373 7,536,677
interest and fee payables 2,831,095 3,813,157
Other payables and liabilities 21 2,563,278 3,723,520
TOTAL LIABILITIES 283,359,586 235,707,626
OWNERS' EQUITY
Capital 26,034,068 20,034,068
- Charter capital 26,000,000 20,000,000
- Capital expenditure fund 608 608
- Share premium 33,460 33,460
Reserves 3,288,026 2,589,959
Retained earnings 7,495,463 8,674,185
TOTAL OWNERS’ EQUITY 23 36,817,557 31,298,212
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY 320,177,143 267,005,838




Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
as at 31 December 2024

QOFF-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS
31 December 2024

BO2/TCTD-HN

31 December 2023

Notes : VND million VND miflion
1. Credit guaraniees 38 183,030 31,980
2. Foreign exchange commitments 38 479,800,332 343,840,786
2.1 Foreign exchange commitments - buy 11,749,712 11,263,221
2.2 Foreign exchange commitments - self 11,751,127 11,255,288
2.3 Swap coniracts 456,299,483 321,322,277
3. Letters of credit 38 3,135,897 7,555,360
4. Other guarantees 38 24,893,161 21,686,263
5. Other commitments 38 20,300,893 11,326,357
8. Uncollected interests and fee receivables 39 1,544,918 2,089,138
7. Bad debts written off 40 15,570,648 15,649,464
8. Other assets and documents 41 94,502,930 83,676,862
Prepared by; Reviewed by: Sy
P SL evie y i
‘éuﬁs?é %iAi‘%é%
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Ms. Nguyen Bac Ngoc Ms. Phung Thuy Nhun f%

Financial Reporting Manager  Chief Accountant 4@ £

Hanoi, Vietnam

M January 2025

Wyen Thi Thu Hang
Bad of Financial Management



Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

for the year ended 31 December 2024

Interest and similar income
Interest and similar expenses

Net interest and similar income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses

Net fee and commission income

Net gains from trading of foreign currencies
Net losses from {rading securities

Net gains from investment securities

Other operating income
Other operating expenses

Net gains/(losses) from other operating
activities

Income from capital contribution, share
purchase

Operating expenses

Net profit before provision for credit losses
Credit loss expenses

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Current corporate income tax (“CIT”) expenses
Deferred CIT expenses

Total CIT expenses
PROFIT AFTER TAX

Basic earnings per share (VND/share)

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

BO3/TCTD-MN

2024 2023

Notes VND million VIND million
24 18,681,257 18,951,085
25 (B,438,193) (8,762,570}
10,243,064 9,188,515

1,834,793 2,017,973

{480,738) (420,948)

26 1,354,055 1,597,025
27 1,055,874 1,072,237
28 (478) (12,705)
29 273,491 511,812
1,869,859 610,169

(577,625) (709,697)

30 1,292,234 (99,528)
3 - 1,631
32 (5,229,935) (4,812,331}
8,988,305 7,446,656

(2,084,463) {1,616,746)

6,903,842 5,829,910

33 (1,384 465) (1,185,646)
- (50)

(1,384,465} {1,185,696)

5,519,377 4,644,214

34 2,123 1,786
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Ms. Nguyen Bao Ngoc

Hanoi, Vietnam

Ay January 2025

Ms. Phung Thuy Nhung ™
Financial Reporting Manager Chief Accountant
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Interest and similar receipts

Interest and similar payments

Net fee and commission receipts

Net receipts from frading of foreign currencies,
gold and securities

Other operating expenses

Recoveries from bad debts previously written-off
Payments of operating and personnel expenses
Corporate income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities
hefore changes in operating assets and
liabilities

Changes in operating assets

Decrease in due from banks

Increase in trading securities

Decrease in derivative financial instruments
Increase in loans to customers

Utilization of provision to write off (loans to
customers, securities, long-term investments
and other receivables)

Decrease in other assets

Changes in operating liabilities
Increase/{Decrease) in borrowings from the
Government and the SBV

Increase in due to banks

Increase in customer deposits
Increase/(Decrease) in valuable papers issued
{excluding valuable papers issued for financing
activities)

Increase in derivative financial instruments
{Decrease)/increase in other liabilities

Utilization of reserves

Net cash flows from operating activities

BO4/TCTD-HN

2024 2023

Notes VND million VND million
18,810,323 16,726,536

(9,420,255) (8,202,883)

1,282,558 1,664,653

1,346,695 1,551,505

(977,758) (962,895)

1,341,826 169,518

(4,362,140) (3,819,039)

33 (1,224,944) (1,396,341)
6,906,304 5,631,052

(51,345,762) (31,720,103)

3,078,821 114,974

(27,707,292) {6,903,477)

- 446,344

(29,133,105)

(28,504,837)

(1,407,413) (738,829)
3,823,227 3,865,722
48,617,704 48,074,233
8,190,986 (2,027)
6,665,006 35,179,354
22,262,320 15,229,350
12,219,181 (2,608,098)
466,772 263,356
(1,186,529) 12,298
(32} -
4,178,246 21,985,182




Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BO4/TCTD-HN

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023

Notes VND million VND million
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (149,963) {120,082)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 42,107 503
Payments for disposal of fixed assefs (1) -
Dividends distributed from long-term investments
and capital contributions - 1,631
Proceeds from investment, capital contributicn in
other units (7,014) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities (114,871} (117,928)
Net cash flows during the year 4,063,375 21,867,254
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year 56,913,537 35,046,283
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year 35 60,976,912 56,913,537
Prepared by: Reviewed by: L é%gfd by:
Ms. Nguyen Bac Ngoc Ms. Phung Thuy Nhung EN oﬁy,ghmm en Thi Thu Hang
Financial Reporting Manager  Chief Accountant %JH d“6f Financial Management

Hanoi, Vietnam

L‘f January 2025



Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

1. THE BANK INFORMATION

Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank”) is a joint stock commercial bank
incorporated and registered in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.

The Bank was established in accordance with Banking Operating License No. 0001/NH-GP
issued by the State Bank of Vietnam ("SBV”) on 08 June 1991 which was amended in
accordance with Decision No. 2238/QD-NHNN dated 08 October 2024 with the operating
duration of 99 years. The Bank is operating under Business Registration Certificate No.
0200124891 with the 26" amended Business Registration dated 13 January 2023.

The current principal activities of the Bank are to perform banking services including
mobilizing and receiving short, medium and long-term deposits from organizations and
individuals: making short, medium and long-term loans to organizations and individuals based
on the nature and capability of the Bank’s capital; conducting foreign exchange transactions;
international trade finance services; discounting of commercial papers, bonds and other
valuable papers; conducting payments and treasury services; performing capital
contributions, share purchases, securities investments and other banking services as

approved by the SBV.

Charter capital

As at 31 December 2024, charter capital of the Bank was VND 26,000,000 miliion (31
December 2023: VND 20,000,000 million).

Location and operational network

The Bank’s Head Office is located at 54A Nguyen Chi Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward,
Dong Da District, Hanoi, Vietnam.

As at 31 December 2024, the Bank has one (01) Head Office, sixty-two (62) branches, one
hundred and ninety eight (198} transaction offices nationwide (as at 31 December 2023, the

Bank has one (01) Head Office, sixty-two (62) branches, two hundred and one {201)
transaction offices nationwide).

Subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2024, the Bank had one {01) subsidiary as follows:

1 i TNEX Finance No. 0301516782 initially Other 100%
Company Limited issued on 01 December 2010 | financial
(“TNEX FINANCE") and amended for the 8 time | activities

on 01 February 2024 by the
Manoi Department of Planning
and Investments

Employees

Total number of employees of the Bank as at 31 December 2024 was 6,678 persons (as at
31 December 2023: 6,308 persons).



Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BO5/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

Fiscal year

The Bank's fiscal year starts on 01 January and ends on 31 December.

Accounting currency

The currency used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Bank is
Vietnam dong (“VND"). For purpose of preparing the consolidated financial statements as at
31 December 2024, all amounts are rounded to the nearest million and presented in VND
million. The presentation makes no impact on readers’ view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated operational results and consolidated cash flows of the Bank and its
subsidiaries.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM

Statement of compliance

Management of the Bank confirms that the accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Accounting System for Credit Institutions and the statutory requirements relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank are prepared in accordance with the
Accounting System applicable to Credit Institutions required under Decision No.
479/2004/QD-NHNN issued on 29 April 2004; Circular No. 10/2014/TT-NHNN dated 20 March
2014 Circular No. 22/2017/TT-NHNN dated 29 December 2017 and Circular No. 27/2021/T7F-
NHNN dated 31 December 2021 amending and supplementing Decision No. 479/2004/QD-
NHNN: the financial reporting regime applicable to credit institutions required under Decision
No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007; Circular No. 49/2014/TT-NHNN amending and
supplementing a number of articles of Decision No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN and the chart of
account system for Credit Institutions issued in connection with Decision No. 479/2004/QD-
NHNN by the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam; Decree No. 93/2017/ND-CP dated 07
August 2017; Circular No. 16/2018/TT-BTC dated 07 February 2018 on guidelines for
financial regulations applied to credit institutions and Vietnamese Accounting Standards
issued by the Ministry of Finance as per:

» Decision No. 149/2001/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the Issuance and

Promulgation of Four Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series No. 1);

» Decision No. 165/2002/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2002 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series No. 2);

» Decision No. 234/2003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series No. 3);

» Decision No. 12/2005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the Issuance and
Promuigation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series No. 4); and

» Decision No. 100/2005/QD-BTC dated 28 December 2005 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Four Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series No. 5).

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using accounting
principles, procedures and reporting practices generally accepted in Vietnam. Accordingly,
the accompanying consolidated financial statements and their utilization are not designed for
those who are not informed about Vietnam's accounting principles, procedures and practices
and furthermore are not intended to present the consolidated financial position, results of
consolidated operations and consofidated cash flows in accordance with accounting
principtes and practices generally accepted in countries other than Vietnam.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM {continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

lterns that are not presented in these consolidated financial statements regarding the financial
reporting regime for credit institutions as required by Decision No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated
18 April 2007, Circular No. 49/2014/TT-NHNN dated 31 December 2014 and Circular No.
27/2021/TT-NHNN dated 31 December 2021 issued by the SBV indicate nil balance.

Basis of assumptions and uses of estimates

The preparation of the consoclidated financial statements requires Management of the Bank
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent liabilities. These estimates and assumptions also affect the
income, expenses and the resultant provision. Such estimates are necessarily based on
assumptions involving varying degrees of subjectivity and uncertainty and actual results may
differ resulting in future changes in such estimates and assumptions.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2024,

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the acquisition date, on which the Bank obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the Bank terminates the control.

The financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period, using consistent accounting policies.

Al intra-company balances, income and expenses and unrealized gains or losses resulting
from intra-company transactions are eliminated in full. Non-controlling interest represents the
portion of net results of operations and net assets are not owned, by the Bank and are
presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and within eguity in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted by the Bank in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Bank's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, except for:

Law on Credit Institutions (Law No. 32/2024/QH15) and Circular No. 21/2024/TT-NHNN
(“Circular 21”) regulates about letter of credit operations and other business activities related
to letters of credit.

According to the Law on Credit Institutions and Circular 21 that come into force since 01 July
2024, letters of credit operation is a form of credit extension through issuance, confirmation,
negotiation of payment or reimbursement of L/C to serve the purchase and sale of goods and
services. According to transitional regulations of the Law on Credit Institutions and Circular
21: "Other contracts, agreements, commitments, and transactions related to letter of credit
operations signed and agreed before the effective date of Circular 21, banks and customers
can continue to implement, monitor until the validity period expires and the obligations of
related parties have been fulfilled. Amendments, supplements, and axtensions to confracts,
agreements, commitments, and other transactions are made only if the content of the
amendments, supplements, extensions comply with the regulations of Circular 21"

The Bank has made accounting recognition in accordance with this transitional condition.
11



Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

Circular No. 31/2024/TT-NHNN (“Circular 317) guiding classifications of assets in operations
of commercial banks, non-bank credit institutions and foreign bank branches.

SBV issues Circular 31 that comes into force since 01 July 2024, replacing the contents
related to debt classification in Circular No. 11/2021/TT-NHNN (“Circuiar 11"} prescribing
classification of assets, levels and methods of risk provisioning, use of risk provisions for
management of risks arising from operations of credit institutions and foreign bank branches.
Based on Circular 31, the Bank classified assets in operations.

Decree No. 86/2024/ND-CP (“Decree 86" guiding the level and method of risk provisioning
and the use of provisions against credit risks in the operations of credit institutions and foreign
pank branches and cases where credit institutions allocate interest receivables that must be

writfen off.

The Government issued Decree 86 that comes into force since 11 July 2024, replacing the
risk provisioning guidelines in Circular 11. Based on Decree 86, the Bank made risk provisions
and use provisions to handle risks during the year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, gold, balances with the SBY, demand
deposits and placements with other credit institutions with an original maturity of three months
or less from the transaction date, securities with recovery or maturity of three months or less
from date of purchase which can be converted into a known amount of cash and do not bear
the liquidity risk as at the date of these consolidated financial statements.

Due from banks
Due from banks are presented at the principal amounts outstanding at the end of the year.
The classification of credit risk for due from banks is made in accordance with Circutar 31.

The provision for credit losses for due from banks is made in accordance with Decree 86.
Accordingly, the Bank makes a specific provision for placements with (except for current
accounts at other Cls, foreign bank's branches in Vietnam) and loans to other Cis according
to the method as described in Note 4.5. According to Decree 86, the Bank is not required to
make a general provision for due from banks.

Loans to customers and debts purchased
Loans to customers are presented at the principal amounts outstanding at the end of the year.

Provision for credit losses of loans to customers is accounted and presented in a separate
line in the consolidated statement of financiai position.

Short-term loans have maturity of less than or equal to one year from disbursement date.
Medium-term loans have maturity from one to five years from disbursement date. Long-term
loans have maturity of more than five years from disbursement date.

Debts purchased are disclosed at cost which is the purchase price of the debts.

Loan classification is made according to Circular 31 and provision for credit losses is made
according to Decree 86 as presented in Note 4.5.

12



Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4,

4.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Classification, level and method for making provision for credit losses

Debt classification

The classification of placements with and loans to other Cls (except for current accounts),
direct and entrusted investments in unlisted corporate bonds, loans to customers, debts
purchased, Usance Payable At Sight Letter of Credit and entrustments for credit granting
(collectively called “debts”) is made in compliance with Article 10 of Circular 31.

Specific provision

Specific provision as at 31 December is made based on the principal balance less discounted
value of collaterals as at 31 December multiplied by provision rates which are determined
based on the debt classification results. The specific provision rates for each group are

presented as follows:

1 | Current (a) Current debts are assessed as fully and timely recoverable for both 0%
principals and interests; or

(b) Debts are overdue for a period of less than 10 days and assessed
as fully recoverable for both overdue principals and interests, and
fully and timely recoverabfe for both remaining principals and

interests.
2 | Special (a) Debts are overdue for a period of 90 days or less, other than those 5%
mention specified in Point (b) of Loan Group 1, or
(b) Undue debts whose repayment terms are restructured for the first
time.
3 | Sub- (a) Debts are overdue for a period of between 91 days and 180 days; or | 20%
standard | (b) Undue debts whose repayment terms are extended for the first time;
or

{c) Debts which interests are exempted or reduced because customers
do not have sufficient capability to repay all interests under credit
contracts; or

(d) Debts under one of the following cases which have not been’
recovered in less than 30 days from the date the bank or non-bank
Cls signs the debt recovery document {hereinafter referred to as the
date of recovery decision);

» Debts made incompliance with Clause 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 under Article
134 of Law on Credit Institutions; or

» Debts made incompliance with Clause 1, 2, 3, 4 under Arficle 135
of Law on Credit Institutions; or

» Debts made incompliance with Clauses 1, 2, 5, 9 under Article
136 of Law on Credit Institutions.

{e) Debts are required to be recovered according to regulatory inspection
conclusions; or

() Debts are required to be recovered as follows the before-due
recovery decision of the Bank due to customers' breach of the
agreement with the Bank but stilf outstanding with an overdue for a
period of less than 30 days from the date of recovery decision; or

(g) At the request of the SBV based on regulatory inspection,

supervision results and relevant credit information.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

4.5 Classification, level and method for making provision for credit losses (continued)

Specific provision (continued)

4 | Doubtful | a) Debts are overdue for a period of between 181 days and 360 days; or 50%

(b) Debts whose repayment terms are restructured for the first time but still
overdue for a period of less than 90 days under that restructured
repayment term; or

{¢) Debts whose repayment terms are restructured for the second time; or

(d) Debts are specified in Point (d) of Loan Group 3 and overdue for a
period of between 30 days and 60 days after decisions of recovery have
been issued; or

{e) Debts are required to be recovered according to regulatory inspection
conclusions but still outstanding with an overdue period up to 60 days
since the recovery date as required by regulatory inspection
conclusions; or

() Debts are required to be recovered as follows the before-due recovery
decision of the Bank due to customers’ breach of the agreement with
the Bank but still outstanding with an overdue for a period of 30 to 60
days from the date of recovery decision; or

(g} At the request of the SBV based on regulatory inspection, supervision

results and relevant credit information.

5 | Loss {a) Debts are overdue for a period of mare than 360 days; or 100%

{b) Debts whose repayment terms are restructured for the first time but still
overdue for a period of 80 days or more under that first restructured
repayment term, or

(c) Debts whose repayment terms are restructured for the second time but
still overdue under that second restructured repayment term; or

(d) Debts whose repayment terms are restructured for the third time or
more; or

(e) Debts are specified in Point (d) of Loan Group 3 and overdue for a
period of more than 60 days after decisions on recovery have been
issued; or .

() Debts are required to be recovered under regulatory inspection
conclusions but still outstanding with an overdue period of more than
60 days since the recovery date as required by regulatory inspection
conclusions; or

{g) Debts are required to be recovered as follows the before-due recovery
decision of the Bank due to customers’ breach of the agreement with
the Bank but still outstanding with an overdue for a pericd of more than
60 days from the date of recovery decision; or

(h) Debts of credit institutions under special controf as announced by the
8BV, or debts of foreign bank branches whose capital and assets are
blocked.

(i) At the request of the SBV based on regulatory inspection, supervision

results and relevant credit information.

If a customer has more than one debt with the Bank and any of the outstanding debts are
classified into a higher risk group, the entire remaining debts of such customer should be
classified into the corresponding higher risk group.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BO5S/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Classification, level and method for making provision for credit losses (continued)

Specific provision (continued)

When the Bank participates in a syndicated loan as a participant, except for the case where
the Bank provides a syndicated loan with entrusted capital from a third party that this third
party commits to be responsible for any risks occurred, it should classify loans (including
syndicated loans) of the customer into a higher of the risk group assessed by the leading bank
and by the Bank.

If a customer is classified by the Bank into the risk group which is lower than the risk group
provided by Credit Information Center ("CIC"), the Bank is required to adjust the risk group of
such customer following the risk group provided by CIC.

The Bank also applies regulations on rescheduling the repayment term and keeping the debt
group unchanged for loans that meet the requirements of Circular No. 01/2020/TT-NHNN
(“Circular 017) issued by the SBV on 13 March 2020, Circular No. 03/2021/TT-NHNN (“Circufar
03") dated 02 April 2021, Circular No. 04/2021/TT-NHNN (*Circular 04") dated 05 April 2021,
Circular No. 14/2021/TT-NHNN (“Circular 14") dated 07 September 2021 amending and
supplementing several articles of Circular 01 issued by the SBV, providing for credit
institutions and foreign bank branches to restructure the repayment term, exempt or reduce
interest and fees, maintaining the debt group to support customers affected by the Covid-19
epidemic and Circular No. 06/2024/TT-NHNN (“Circular 06") dated 18 June 2024 amending
and supplementing to several articles of Circular No. 02/2023/TT-NHNN (“Circular 02") dated
23 April 2023 of the SBV providing instructions for credit institutions and foreign branch banks
on debt rescheduling and retention of debt category to assist borrowers in difficulties.

For the debt balance of which repayment term is restructured, interest is exempted or
reduced, the group of overdue debts remains unchanged according to the restructured term,
and the Bank restructures the repayment term and keeps the same debt group, according to
current regulations, the Bank shall classify debts in accordance with Circular 31 and make
provision for risks in accordance with Decree 86.

From 24 April 2023, the Bank applied policies to restructure the repayment term but retain the
debt classification for assisting customer with difficulties in operating activities and
customers with debt repayment difficulties to meet requirement of Circular 02 issued by
the SBV providing instructions for credit institutions and foreign branch banks on debt
rescheduling and retention of debt category to assist borrowers in difficulties.

Accordingly, the Bank is allowed to restructure the repayment term for these debts and retain
the debt classification as follows:

Disbursement | Qverdue status of | Duefoverdue . , ,

date debts date Debt classification retention

Before 24 In due or overdue | From 24 April Retain the latest debt classification as

April 2023 for a peried of 10 2023 to 31 before the overdue date or the date that
days since the due | December 2024 | interest obligation was exempted/reduced
date

15

i



Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BO5S/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Classification, level and method for making provision for credit losses (continued)
Specific provision (continued)

The Bank makes specific provisions for customers whose debt repayment term is restructured
and debt classification is retained by following formula: C=A-B

In which:

C: Additional specific provision;

A: Specific provision made for customer’s outstanding loan balance according to Circular 31's
debt classification (retention of debt category is not applicable);

B: Specific provision made for the restructured loan balance and specific provision made for
the remaining loan balance of customer according to Circular 31's debt classification.

Additional specific provision (C) is made at the date of the financial statements to ensure the
minimum provision as follows:

- As of 31 December 2023: At least 50% of the specific provision,
- As of 31 December 2024: 100% of the specific provision.

General provision

According to Decree 86, general provision is made at 0.75% of total cutstanding loans
classified as Current, Special mention, Substandard and Doubtfut excluding:

» Placements with other Cls, foreign bank branches in Vietnam and foreign Cls;

» Loans to and purchases of valuable papers issued by other Cls, foreign bank branches
in Vietnam;

» Promissory notes and bills; certificates of deposit, bonds issued by other Cls and foreign
bank branches; and

» Repurchases of government bonds.

Bad debts written off

According to Decree 86, loans to customers are written off against the provision if they are
classified in Group 5 or if the borrower is a dissolved, bankrupt organization or individual who

is dead or missing.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.6

4.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Securities held for trading

Securities held for trading include equity securities acquired and held for the purpose of
trading. Equity securities are initially recognized at cost at the purchase date and
subsequently presented at cost.

Securities held for trading are subject to impairment review at the end of fiscal year.

Provision for diminution in value of securities is made when the carrying value is higher than
the market value in compliance with Article 5, Circular No. 48/2019/TT-BTC issued by the
Ministry of Finance on 08 August 2019 ("Circular 48"). In case market prices of securities are
not available or cannot be determined reliably, no provision is calculated. Provision is
recognized in “Net gains/(losses) from trading securities” on the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

In case securities are not listed on the stock exchanges or not registered for trading on the
UPCoM trading system (hereinafter referred to as “unlisted securities"), the Bank determines
the amount of provisions based on the separate financial statements of economic entities
receiving capital contribution at the same time as the Bank's annual reporting date, provision
for each investment is calculated by the following formula:

Owners' equity of
the economic entity
receiving
contributed capital
at the time of
provisioning

Proportion of actual chaiter
capital contribution (%) of
_the Bank at the economic
~  entity receiving contributed
capital at the time of
provisioning

Actual investment capital
of owners of the economic
xentity receiving contributed -
capital at the time of
provisioning

Provision for
each
investment

Gains or losses from sales of securities held for trading are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Securities held for trading are derecognized when the rights to
receive cash flows from these securities are terminated or the Bank transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of these securities.

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities include debt and equity securities that are acquired by the Bank
for investment and available-for-sale purposes, not regularly traded but can be sold whenever
there is a benefit. For equity securities, the Bank is also neither the founding shareholder nor
the strategic partner and does not have the ability to make certain influence on establishing
and making the financial and operating policies of the investees through a written agreement
on assignment of its personnel to the Board of Directors/Management.

Equity securities are initially recognized at cost at the purchase date and subsequently
presented at cost.

Debt securities are recognized at par value at the purchase date. Accrued interest (for debt
securities with interest payment in arrears) and deferred interest (for debt securities with
interest payment in advance) are recognized in a separate account. Discount/premium which
is the difference between the cost and the amount being the par value plus (+) accrued interest
(if any) or minus (-) deferred interest (if any) is also recognized in a separate account.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BO5/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.7

4.8

4.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Available-for-sale securities {continued)

In subsequent periods, these securities are continuously recorded at par value, and the
discount/premium (if any) is amortized to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the remaining term of securities. Interest received in arrears is
recorded as follows: cumutative interest incurred before the purchasing date is recorded as a
decrease in the accrued interest; cumulative interest incurred after the purchasing date is
recognized as income based on the accumulated method. Interest received in advance is
amortized into the securities investment interest income on a straight-line basis over the term
of securities investment. :

Available-for-sale securities are subject to impairment review at year end.

Provision for diminution in value of securities (except for unlisted corporate bonds and
government bonds, government-guaranteed bonds, local government bonds) is made when
the carrying value is higher than the market value in compliance with Article 5, Circular 48
and Circular No. 24/2022/TT-BTC dated 07 April 2022 amending and supplementing a
number of articles of Circtilar 48 issued by the Ministry of Finance. In case market prices of
securities are not available or cannot be determined reliably, no provision is calculated.
Provision is recognized in the “Net gains/losses} from investment securities” on the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Unlisted corporate bonds are classified according to Circular 31 and risk provisions are made
according to Decree 86 as presented in Nofe 4.5.

Investment securities are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from these
securities are terminated or the Bank transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of these securities.
Re-purchase and reverse-repurchase contracts

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specific date in the future (repos) are
still recognized in the consolidated financial statements. The corresponding cash received
from these agreements is recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position as a
borrowing and the difference between the sale price and repurchase price is amortized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the term of the agreement using the straight-line
method based on the interest rate stipulated in the contract.

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specific date in the future
are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. The corresponding cash paid
under these agreements s recognized as a loan in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the difference between the purchase price and resale price is amortized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the term of the agreement using the straight-line
method based on the interest rate stipulated in the contract.

Other long-term investments

Other long-term investments are investments in other entities in which the Bank holds less”

than or equal to 11% of voting rights and securities of these entities are not listed on the stock
exchanges. These investments are initially recorded at cost at the transaction date.

Provision for diminution in the value of long-term investments is made when there is reliable
evidence of the decrease in value of those investments at year end as stipulated in Article 5,
Circular 48.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BGS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Other long-term investments {continued)

Provision is reversed, if the recoverable amount of the investments increases after making
provision, to the extent that the carrying value of these investments does not exceed the
carrying value of this investment assuming that no allowance has been recerded,

Increase or decrease in provision for long-term investments is recognized in “Operating
expenses” on the consoclidated statement of profit or loss.

Fixed assefs
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortization.

The cost of a fixed asset comprises its purchase price plus any directly attributable cost of
bringing the. asset to working condition for its intended use. Costs related to additions,
improvements and renewals are capitalized while expenditures for maintenance and repairs
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss when incurred.

When assets are sold or liquidated, their cost and accumulated depreciation are deducted
from the statement of financial position item and any gains or losses resulting from their
disposal are recorded to the consolidated e statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets and amortization of intangible fixed assets is caiculated
on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets as follows:

Buildings and structures 5— 50 years
Machines and equipment 3 - 20 years
Means of transportation 6 — 30 years
Office equipment 3 - 10 years
Other tangible fixed assets 4 - 25 years
Computer software 3 -20 years
Other intangible fixed assets 3-8 years

Land use rights granted by the Government with indefinite term are not amortized. Land use

rights with definite term are amortized over the leased term or durafion of use.

Receivables
Receivables are initially recognized at cost and subsequently presented at cost.

Provision for receivables is determined based on the overdue status of debts or expected loss
of current debts in case the debts are undue yet the organization has fallen into bankruptcy,
is under dissolution process or has absconded; or individual who is being prosecuted,
detained, on trial or under sentence or is suffering from fatal diseases (with medical certificate)
or has deceased or the debts requested for sentence yet are unenforceable due to individual
escaping or the debts sued for debt collection yet are under suspension. Provision expenses
for receivables classified as credit risk-bearing assets are recorded in "Credit loss expenses”,
and provision expenses for other receivables are recorded in “Operating expenses” on the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.12

4.13

4,14

4.15

4.16

4.17

SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Receivables (continued)

Provision for doubtful receivables is made in accordance with Circular 48 as follows:

Overdue pericd ' Provision rate
From over six months up to one year 30%
From cne to under two years 50%
From two to under three years 70%
From three years and above 100%

Prepaid expenses and expenses awaiting allocation

Prepaid expenses are reported as short-term or long-term prepaid expenses on the
consolidated statement of financial position and amortized over the year for which the amount
is paid or the year in which economic benefit is generated in relation to these expenses.

Operating lease

Rentals under operating lease are charged to the "Operating expenses” on the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the cost method. The cost of a business
combination is measured as the fair value of assets given, equity instruments issued by the
acquirer in exchange for control of the acquiree and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of business combination plus any cost directly attributable to the business combination.
Identifiable assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
of the acquiree are measured initially at fair value at the date of business combination.

Goodwill acguired in a business combination is initially recognized at cost being the excess
of the cost the business combination over the acquirer's interest in the net fair vaiue of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. If the cost of a business
combination is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. After initial
recognition, goodwill is recognized at cost less any accumulated amortization. Goodwill is
amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of ten (10} years.

Borrowings from the Government and the SBV
Borrowings from the Government and the SBV are recognized at cost.
Due to banks, customer deposits and valuable papers issued

Due to banks, customer deposits and valuable papers issued are presented at the principal
amounts outstanding at the end of the year.

At the date of initial recognition, expenses for bond issuance are deducted from principal

amount of the bonds. The Bank then allocates these expenses into “Interest and similar
expenses” on straight-line basis according to the terms of the valuable papers.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.21.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivatives

The Bank enters in currency forward contracts and swap contracts to facilitate customers to
transfer, modify or mitigate foreign exchange risk or other market risks, and also for the

business purpose of the Bank.
Currency forward contracts

Currency forward contracts are commitments to settle in cash on a pre-determined future date
based on the difference between pre-determined exchange rates, and the notional amount of
the contracts. Currency forward contracts are recognized at nominal value at the transaction
date and are revalued pericdically. Gains or losses from revaluation are recognized in the
“Impact of exchange rate fluctuation” under “Owners’ equity” and will be transferred to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss at the maturity date or at year end.

Swap contracis

Swap contracts are commitments to settle in cash on a pre-determined future date based on
the difference between pre-determined exchange rates and the notional principal amount of
the contracts or commitments to settle interest based on a floating rate or a fixed rate
calculated on the notional amount and in a given period. Currency swap contracts are
revalued periodically. Gains or losses from revaluation are recognized in “Impact of exchange
rate fluctuation” under "Owners’ equity” and will be transferred to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss at the maturity date or at year end.

Differences in interest rate swaps are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on an accrual basis.

Foreign currency transactions

According to accounting system of the Bank, all transactions are recorded in original
currencies. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into VND using exchange rates ruling at the consolidated statement of financial position date
(Note 46). Income and expenses arising in foreign currencies during the year are translated
into VND at rates ruling at the transaction dates. Foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in the “Impact of exchange
rate fluctuation” under "Owners’ equity” and will be transferred to the consolidated statement

of profit or loss at year end.
Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and
services received, whether or not billed to the Bank. '

Capital and reserves

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance
of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from share premium in equity.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.21

4.21.2

4.21.3

4.21.4

4.22

4.23

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}
Capital and reserves (continued)

Share premium

On receipt of capital from shareholders, the difference between the issuance price and the
par value of the shares is recorded as share premium in equity.

Treasury shares

When shares recognized as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid,
which includes directly attributable costs, net of tax effects, is recognized as a reduction from
equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares under equity. When treasury
shares are sold for reissue subsequently, cost of the reissued shares is determined on a
weighted average basis. Any difference between the amount received and the cost of the
shares reissued is presented within share premium.

Reserves

The Bank makes appropriation to reserves in accordance with current regulations and
Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders or corresponding owners.

(i) Bank's reserves: Reserves are for specific purposes and appropriated from net profit after
tax of the Bank at prescribed rates as below:

» Supplementary charter capital reserve: 10% of net profit after tax and does not
exceed charter capital;

» Financial reserve; 10% of net profit after tax;

» Bonus and welfare funds are appropriated according to the Decision approved in the
General Meeting of Sharehoiders;

» Other reserves: are to be made upon current regulations and decisions of the General
Shareholders’ Meeting.

(i) Subsidiaries’ reserves
» TNEX Finance Company Limited (“TNEX FINANCE"): According to Law on Credit

Institutions and Decree No. 93/2017/ND-CP, TNEX FINANCE is required to make
statutory reserves before distribution of profits similar to the Bank.

Classification for off-balance sheet commitments

Credit institutions shall classify guarantees, payment acceptances and irrevocable loan
commitments with specific effective date (generally called "off-statement of financial position
commitments”) for management and monitoring of credit quality as follows the classification
policy applied for debts as stated in Note 4.5. According to Decree 86, the Bank is not required
to make provision for off-statement of financial position commitments.

Recognition of income and expenses

inferest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
on an accrual basis. Accrued interest income from debts which are classified into Group 2 to
5 in compliance with Circular 31 and debts retained in Group 1 in compliance with Circular
01, Circular 02, Circular 03, Circular 04, Circular 14 and Circular 06 will not be recognized in
consolidated statement of profit or Joss. Suspended interestincome is reversed and monitored
off-statement of financial position and recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss upon actual receipt.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.23

4.24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Recognition of income and expenses (continued)
Fee and commission income and expenses

Fee and commission income are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the services are performed. Fee and commission expenses are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when these expenses are incurred.

Income from investment activities

income from securities trading is recognized based on differences between selling price and
cost of securities sold.

Cash dividend is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss upon formation of
cash dividend right.

Dividend paid in the form of common shares, bonus shares and right shares for existing
shareholders, shares distributed from retained earnings are not recognized as an increment
in investment value or income of the Bank. Only the quantity of shares is updated.

Dividends received in connection with the year before the investment is made are recognized
as a decrease in carrying amount of the investment. ‘

Income/expenses from debt trading

Income from debt trading is determined by the difference between the price of debts
purchased or sold and their book value.

Book value of debts purchased and sold is the book value of the principal, interest and related
financial obligations (if any) of debts recorded in the statement of financial position or off the
statement of financial position at the date of debt purchase or sale; or the book value at the
date of writing-off of debts; or the book value of debts written off previously at the date of debt
purchase and sale.

Debt purchase and sale price are the sum of money to be paid by a debt purchaser to a debt
seller under a debt purchase and sale confract.

Corporate income tax

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from (or paid to) the taxation authorities — using the tax
rates and tax laws applied and enacted at the consolidated statement of financial position

date.

Current income tax is charged or credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss except
when it relates to items recognized directly to equity, in this case the current income tax is
also recognized in equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
for the Bank to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilites and when the Bank
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BO5S/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.24

4.25

4.25.1

4,252

4,253

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Corporate income tax (continued)

Deferred fax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the consclidated statement of financial
position date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for the
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax payables are recognized for temporary taxable differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, deductible
amounts carried over subsequent periods of taxable losses and unused tax credits when it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profit to use deductible temperary differences,
taxable losses and tax credits. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are determined

on the basic of expected tax rate applied when assets are recavered, or liabilities are settled

and on the basis of tax rate and tax laws which effective at the end of the year.
Employee benefits

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired employees of the Bank by the Sccial Insurance
Agency which belongs to the Ministry of Labor, Invalids and Social Affairs. The Bank is
required to contribute to these post-employment benefits by paying social insurance premium
to the Social Insurance Agency at the rate of 17.5% of an employee’s basic monthly salary,
salary-related allowance and other supplements. Other than that, the Bank has no further
obligation relating to post-employment benefits.

Voluntary resignation benefits

The Bank has the obligation, under Article 46 of the Vietnam Labor Code No.45/2019/QH14
effective from 01 January 2021, to pay allowance arising from voluntary resignation of
employees, equal to one-half month’s salary for each year of employment up to 31 December
2008 plus salary allowances (if any). From 01 January 2009, the average monthly salary used
in this calculation is the average monthly salary of the latest six-month period up to the
resignation date. Accordingly, working time at the Bank to calculate severance allowance is
the total actual working time at the Bank minus (-) the time the employee has participated in
unemployment insurance in accordance with the law regarding unemployment insurance, and
the working time that has been paid off by employers for severance allowance.

Unemployment insurance

According to Circular No. 28/2015/TT-BLDTBXH providing guidelines for Article 52 of the Law
on Employment and Decree No. 28/2015/ND-CP dated 12 March 2015 of the Government
providing guidelines for the Law on Employment in term of unemployment insurance, the Bank
is required to contribute to the unemployment insurance at the rate of 1% of salary and wage
fund of unemployment insurance joiners and deduct 1% of monthly salary and wage of each
employee to contribute to the unemployment insurance fund.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.26  Related parties

Parties are considered to be related parties of the Bank if a party has the ability, either directly
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions, or when the Bank and other parties are under
common controf or under common significant influence. Related parties can be enterprises or

individuals, including close family members of individuals who are related parties.

4,27  Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic earnings per share for ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share
amounts are calculated by dividing net profit or loss after tax for the year aftributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Bank (after adjusting for the bonus and welfare fund) by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

If the shares issued during the year only change the number of shares without changing the
total equity, the Bank will adjust the weighted average number of ordinary shares currently
circulated to the prior year presented on the consolidated financial statements, resulting in a

corresponding adjustment of the opening balance of the basic earnings per shares.

4,28 Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceabie legal
right to offset financial assets against financial liabilities or vice-versa, and there is an intention

to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

5. CASH, GOLD AND GEMSTONES
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
VND milfion VND million
Cash in VND 874,429 734,824
Cash in foreign currencies 326,850 203,287
Gold 1,709 1,518
1,203,088 939,629
6. BALANCES WITH THE STATE BANK OF VIETNAM (“SBV")
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
VND miilion VYND miilion
Balances with the SBV
- InVND 4,666,137 3,277,068
- Inforeign currencies B28 647 1,312,131
5,494,784 4,589,189
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BO5S/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

6. BAILLANCES WITH THE STATE BANK OF VIETNAM (“SBV") (continued)

Balances with the SBV include current account and compulsory reserves. In accordance with
the SBV's regulations, as at 31 December 2024, the Bank is required to maintain certain cash

reserve with the SBV in the form of compulsory reserves as follow:

» Reserves are computed at 3.00% and 1.00% of customer deposits in VND with original

maturities of less than 12 months and from 12 months respectively;

» Reserves are computed at 8.00% and 6.00% of customer deposits in foreign currencies
with original maturities of less than 12 months and from 12 menths respectively.

DUE FROM BANKS
31 December 2024

31 December 2023

VIND million VND milfion
Placements with other Cls 54,279,040 51,384,709
Demand deposits with other Cls 14,765,040 13,813,935
- InVND 13,668,462 12,674,755
- In foreign currencies 1,096,578 1,139,180
Term deposits with other Cls 39,514,000 37,570,774
- InVND 39,260,000 28,200,000
- In foreign currencies 254,000 8,370,774
Loans to other Cis 6,686,164 9,764,985
In VND 8,556,772 9,374,123
In foreign currencies 129,392 390,862

60,965,204 61,149,694

Analysis of outstanding due from banks by quality are as follows:

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

VND million VND million
Current 486,200,164 47,335,759
46,200,164 47,335,759
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

8. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Total carrying value {*)

Total contract Net realizable

nominal value () Assets Liabilities value
VYND miltion VND million VND miflion VND million

As at 31 December 2024

Derivative financial instruments

Forward contracts 4,175,620 - (67,298) {67,298)
Swap confracts 222,988,861 - {662,830) {662,830)
227,164,381 - (730,128) {730,128)

As at 31 December 2023

Derivative financial instruments

Forward contracts 62,703,812 - (43,307) {43,307)
Swap contracts 158,208,872 - {220,049) (220,049)
220,912,684 - (263,356) (263,356)

(*) Total contract value is translated using exchange rates at the contract value date.

(**) Total carrying value is the net value translated using exchange rates at the statement of
financial position date.

9. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
VND million VND million
l_oans to local economic entities and individuals 177,984,138 148,789,541

Commercial papers and valuable papers
discount 250,770 355,845
Payments on behalf of customers 43,343 -
178,278,251 149,145,386

9.1 Analysis of loan to customers by quality

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

VND miffion VND million

Current 171,403,474 142,221,856
Special mention 2,153,536 2,642 701
Substandard 773,180 1,032,207
Doubtful 1,004,586 1,441,280
Loss 2,943,485 1,807,342
178,278,251 149,145,386
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

9.

9.2

9.3

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS {continued)

Analysis of loan to customers by original maturity

BOS/TCTD-HN

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

VND million VND million

Short-term loan 66,114,974 67,725,380
Medium-term loan 61,516,726 43,819,385
Long-term loan 50,646,551 37,600,621
178,278,251 149,145,386

Analysis of loan to customers by type of customers and ownership

State-owned enterprises

State-owned limited fiability companies
Privately-owned limited [iability companies
Joint-stock companies with state-owned
share capital accounting for more than 50%
of the charter capital or the total number of
voting shares; or the state retains control of
the company in its charter

Other joint stock companies

Private companies

Foreign invested enterprises

Cooperatives, cooperative unions
Individuals

Operation administration entity, the Party,
unions and associations

Others
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31 December 2024

31 December 2023

VND million % VND miflion %
1,274,101 0.71 3,605,975 2.42
1,457,710 0.83 756,626 0.51

47,240,196 26.50 39,938,570 26.78
1,416,543 0.79 1,852,456 1.24

78,889,804 4425 61,423,469 41.18

2,039 0.00 3,777 0.00
47,946 0.03 253,713 017
18,195 0.01 22,442 0.02

47,929,388 26.88 41,286,931 27.68

2098 0.00 398 0.00

2,120 0.00 1,029 0.00

178,278,251 100.00 149,145,386 100.00




Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

9. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

9.4 Analysis of loan to customers by industries

31 December 2024

BOS/TCTD-HN

31 December 2023

VND million %  VND million %
Agriculture, forestry and fisheries 629,627 0.35 2,346,262 1.57
Mining 1,176,681 0.66 332,646 0.22
Seafood processing 1,355,092 0.76 1,427,864 0.96
Manufaciuring, food processing, beverages,
animal feed 2,295,490 1.29 1,609,573 1.08
Textile, skin and costumes manufacturing 1,445 539 0.81 1,613,849 1.08
Wood extracticn, primary processing,
manufacturing and other wood products 1,810,169 1.07 1,310,563 0.88
Paper manufacturing and printing 407,433 0.23 1,357,596 0.91
Pharmaceuticals, medicinal chemical,
rubber, plastics, fertilizers, chemicals
manufacturing 2,797,289 1.57 2,123,551 1.42
Production of construction materials
(excluding steel, stainless steel, paint,
mastic...) 3,202,064 1.80 1,537,847 1.03
Steel products : 1,813,845 1.02 295,669 0.20
Billet production 4,789 0.00 17,276 0.01
Production of stainless steel and other
metallurgy 84,256 0.05 49,188 0.03
Mechanical, assembly, manufacturing of
machinery, automobiles, motorcycles 3,813,479 2.20 1,366,705 0.92
Manufacturing of electronic, electrical
equipment, optical computers,
telecommunications equipment 7,270,865 4.08 2,711,575 1.82
Ship, boats 521 0.00 3,382 0.00
Office equipment, home appiiances,
medical equipment, education, sports 167,999 0.09 41,335 0.03
Production and distribution of
electricity, energy, water supply, waste and
wastewater management and processing 5,083,131 2.85 8,346,872 5.60
Construction 15,786,992 B.86 13,105,715 8,79
Light industry and consumer goods 19,990,140 11.21 16,285,336 10.92
"Fertilizers, chemicals and other chemical
products, medicines, pharmaceuticals,
medical devices 1,662,526 0.83 1,086,396 0.73
Commercial of gasoline, oil 1,737,040 0.97 4,645 331 311
Trading of steel, cement, building materials
other synthetic 13,483,100 7.55 7,426,527 4.98
Heavy industry 3,817,147 2.14 2,978,460 2.00
Transportation and waterways 4 370,573 2.45 3,519,426 2.36
Shipping business 1,652,285 0.93 683,712 0.48
Hotel services, tourism, dining, entertainment 448,558 0.25 188,876 0.13
Property and infrastructure 17,153,000 9.62 13,163,398 8.83
Telecommunications services 327,385 0.18 1,108,097 0.74
Professional, scientific and technological
activities, administrative and support
services, heaith education, information and
communication 7,984,989 4.48 4 087,884 2.74
Warehousing and support services 445,206 0.25 91,464 0.06
Financial and securities activities 5,669,152 3.18 7,281,125 4.88
Other industries 2,282,421 1.29 5715135 3.83
Individuals 47,929,388 26.88 41,286,931 27.68
178,278,251 100.00 149,145,386 100.00
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

10, PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES OF LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
31 December 2024 31 December 2023

VND million VND million

General provision 1,315,011 1,105,035
Specific provision 1,724 445 1,257,712
3,039,456 2,362,747

Changes in provision for credit losses of loans to customers during the year ended 31
December 2024 are as follows:

General provision Specific provision Total

VND miflion VND million VYND miflion

Opening balance 1,105,035 1,257,712 2,362,747
Provision charged 209,976 1,874,292 2,084,268
Bad debts written off - {1,407 413) (1,407,413)
Other decreases - (240) (240)
Other increases - 84 94
Closing balance 1,315,011 1,724,445 3,039,456

Changes in provision for credit losses of loans to customers during the year ended 31
December 2023 are as follows:

General provision Specific provision Total

VND million VND million VND million

Opening balance 898,256 532,665 1,430,921
Provision charged 208,779 1,437,329 1,644,108
Bad debts written off - (709,288) (709,288)
Other decreases - {3,185) (3,185)
Other increases - 191 191
Closing balance 1,105,035 1,257,712 2,362,747
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

11, INVESTMENT SECURITIES

11.1  Available-for-sale securities

Debt securities
Government bonds
Debt securities issued by other local Cls

Debt securities issued by local economic entities

Provision for available-for-sale securities
General provision
Specific provision

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

VND million VND million
65,604,781 37,897,490
42,993,384 22,572,105
21,711,012 13,800,000
900,385 1,525,385
(34,925) (17,117)
(6,540) (11,440)
{28,385) (5,677)
65,569,856 37,880,373

11.2  Analysis by quality of debt securities classified as credit risk-bearing assets according

to Circular 31

Current
Special mention
Substandard

{oss

12, LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Other long-term investments
Provision for long-term investments

31

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

VND million VND miflion
21,207,012 14,921,000
376,000 376,000

- 28,385

28,385 -
21,611,387 15,325,385

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

VND million VND million
17,049 10,036
(5,019) -
12,030 10,036
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

14,

15.

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Land use Computer
rights software Others Total
VND miflion VND miition VND million VND million
Cost
Opening balance 52,233 556,624 22,086 630,943
Additions 34,374 18,051 - 52,425
Disposal {17,282) - - (17,292)
Closing balance 69,315 574,675 22 086 666,076
Accumuiated
amortization
Opening balance - 418,187 12,653 430,740
Amortization during the
year 909 31,283 2,837 35,029
Closing balance 909 448 470 15,390 465,769
Net book value
Opening halance 52,233 138,437 9,533 200,203
68,406 125,205 6,696 200,307

Closing balance

Cost of fully amortized intangible fixed assets in use as at 31 December 2024 is VND 243,025
million (as at 31 December 2023 is VND 164,409 million).

OTHER ASSETS

Consfruction in progress
Advances for purchase of fixed assets
Repair of fixed assets

Recelvables

Internal receivables

External receivables

- Receivables from debt selling conlracts
- Receivables from trade finance activilies
- Other receivables

Provision for other assets
General provision
Other provision

Interest and fee receivables

Other assets

Foreclosed assets awaiting resoclution
Goodwill

Other assets

33

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

VND million VND million
271,946 171,356
157,195 86,778
114,751 84,578

5,424,330 8,308,671
77,120 76,338
5,347,210 8,232,333
4,001,158 4,001,159
25,971 2,657177
1,320,080 1,673,997
(44,077) (43,650)
(195) -
(43,882) (43,650)
4,897,832 5,065,400
710,611 1,749,755
58,729 1,115,486 -
5,142 15,124
646,740 619,135
11,260,642 15,251,532
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

15,

16.

17.

OTHER ASSETS (continued)

Foreclosed assets awaiting resolution

31 December 2024

BOS/TCTD-HN

31 December 2023

VND million VYND million
Shares 58,729 58,729
Others - 1,066,767
58,729 1,115,496
GOCDWILL
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
VND million VND million
Total value of goodwill 99,823 99,823
Amortization period (year) 10 10
Value of accumulated amortized goodwill at the
beginning of the year 84,699 74,717
Value of unamortized goodwill 15,124 25,106
Goodwill amortized during the year {9,982) (9,982)
Goodwill amortized during the year (9,982) (9,882)
Total value of unamortized goodwill at the end
5142 15,124

of the year

BORROWINGS FROM THE GOVERNMENT AND THE STATE BANK OF VIETNAM

(“SBV!!)

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
VND milion VND million
Borrowings from the SBV 9,202,986 1,011,561
Borrowings according to credit profile 999,972 999,972
Discounting of valuables papers 8,194,415 -

Borrowings for Banking and Settlement System
Modernization Project 8,599 11,588
Deposits from the State Treasury 533 972
Deposits in VND 533 972
9,203,519 1,012,533

34
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

18.

19,

19.1

19.2

DUE TO BANKS

Deposits from other Cls
Demand deposits

- In VND

- In foreign currencies
Term deposits

- InVND

- Inforeign currencies

Borrowings from other Cls

in VND

In foreign currencies

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

BOS/TCTD-HN

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

VYND miflion VND million
59,798,190 54,484,312
14,170,470 13,292,684
13,860,899 12,936,882
309,571 355,802
45,627,720 41,191,628
43,438,205 40,881,510
2 189,515 310,118
32,420,329 31,069,202
24,467,402 11,880,021
7,952,927 19,189,181
92,218,519 85,553,514

Analysis of customer deposits by fype of deposits

Demand deposits
Demand deposits in VND
Demand deposits in foreign currencies

Term deposits
Term deposits in VND
Term deposits in foreign currencies

Deposit for specific purposes
Deposit for specific purposes in VND
Deposit for specific purposes in foreign

currencies

Margin deposits
Margin deposits in VND
Margin deposits in foreign currencies

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

VND miflion VND miflion
38,536,725 33,317,559
34,990,350 29,490,769
3,646,375 3,826,790
113,765,922 97,229,772
111,380,422 85,434,641
2,385,500 1,785,131
739,362 361,807
313,266 307,283
426,096 54,524
1,570,442 1,440,993
1,500,875 1,376,826
69,567 64,167
154,612,451 132,350,131

Analysis of customer deposits by type of customers

Deposits from economic entities
Deposits from individuals

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

VND million %  VND million %
75,407,762  48.77 58,762,543  42.89
79,204,689 5123 75,587,588 57.11
154,612,451 100.00 132,350,131 100.00
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

20. VALUABLE PAPERS ISSUED

BOS/TCTD-HN

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

VIND million VIND million
Certificate of deposit 4 410,596 2,091,415
Ordinary bonds 16,800,000 6,900,000
21,210,596 8,991,415

Details of terms of valuable papers issued by par value at the end of the year of are as follows:

Certificate of
Ordinary bonds deposit Total

VYND million VND million VND million
Up to 12 months
- InVND - 2,950,000 2,850,600
From 12 months to & years
- InVND 15,800,000 1,460,596 17,260,596
From 5 years
- InVND 1,000,000 - 1,000,000

16,800,000 4,410,596 21,210,596

21. OTHER LIABILITIES

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

YND miflion VND million

Internal payables 1,011,977 1,357,884
Payables to employees 685,275 828,508
Other internal payables 326,702 529 376
External payables 1,514,351 2,337,402
Escrow accounts awaiting seftlement 30,885 51,775
Tax payables to the State Budget 805,440 670,804
Payables relating to fund transferring 251,194 185,572
Other external payables 426,832 1,429,251
Bonus and welfare fund 26,950 28,234
2,553,278 3,723,520

22, TAXES AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS TO THE STATE BUDGET

Unit: VND mitlion

Movement during the year

Opening Closing
balance Payables Paid balance
Receivables from the
State Budget {4,455) 1,481 {41) {3,015)
Corporate income tax {4,455) 1,481 {41) {3,015)
Payables to the State
Budget 670,804 1,918,947 {1,784,311) 805,440
Value added tax 11,858 137,859 {137,863) 11,854
Corperate income tax 607,130 1,382,984 {1,224,903) 765,211
Other taxes 51,816 395,576 {419,017) 28,375
Other payables - 2,528 (2,528) -
666,349 1,920,428 (1,784,352) 802,425
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BO5/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

23.

23.2

OWNERS’ EQUITY AND RESERVES {continued)

Capital
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
shares shares
Number of registered shares 2,600,000,000 2,000,000,000
Number of shares issued 2,600,000,000 2,000,000,000
Common shares 2,600,000,000 2,000,000,000
Number of outstanding shares 2,600,000,000 2,000,000,000
Common shares 2,600,000,000 2,000,000,000
Face value per share 10,000 10,000

The list of major shareholders holding shares of 5% or more of the Bank's charter capital is
as follows:
31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Number of Number of
common commeon
shares % shares %

Vietnam Posts and

Telecommunications Group 167,254,977  6.05 120,965,367 6.05

Vietnam Posts and Telecommunications Group operates in the form of a one-member limited
liability company owned by the State according to Decision No. 955/QD-TTg dated 24 June
2010 of the Prime Minister and Business Registration Certificate of One Member Limited
Liability Company No. 0100684378 issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and
Investments on 17 August 2010.

Capital adeguacy ratio of the Bank as at 31 December 2024: 12.39%.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

24,

25.

26.

INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

Interest income from deposits

Interest income from loans to customers
Interest income from investment securities
Interest income from guarantee services
Other income from credit activities

INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSES

Interest expenses on deposits

Interest expenses on borrowings

Interest expenses on valuable papers issued
Expenses for other credit activities

NET FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fees and commission income
Settlement services

Treasury services

Entrustment and agent operations
Others

Fees and commission expenses
Settlement services
Treasury services

Others

Net fees and commission income

39
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2024 2023

VND million VND million
739,544 749,702
13,156,939 15,112,528
2,401,874 1,970,187
301,758 283,123
2,081,142 835,545
18,681,257 18,951,085
2024 2023

VND miflion VND miltion
5,749,485 7,608,989
1,962,713 1,457,534
690,506 644,767
35,489 51,280
8,438,193 9,762,570
2024 2023

VND million YND mitlion
1,834,793 2,017,973
778,930 919,218
2,152 1,955
121,131 443,318
932,580 653,482
(480,738) (420,948)
(243,612) (224,734)
(7,959} (8,091)
(229,167) (187,123)
1,354,055 1,597,025




Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

27.

28.

29,

NET GAINS FROM TRADING OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

income from foreign exchange

Income from spot trading of foreign currencies
and gold

Income from trading of currency derivative
financial instruments

Expenses for foreign exchange

Expense for spot trading of foreign currencies
and gold

Expense for trading of currency derivative
financial instruments

Net gains from trading of foreign currencies

NET LOSSES FROM TRADING SECURITIES

Expenses for trading securities
Provision reversed for trading securities

Net losses from trading securities

NET GAINS FROM INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Income from trading of investment securities
Expenses for trading of investment securities
Provision (charged)/reversed for investment

securities

Net gains from investment securities

40
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2024 2023

VYND million VND million
6,788,126 6,160,214
1,925,669 1,201,639
4 862,457 4,958,575
{(5,732,252) (5,087,977)
(217,687) {171,232)
(5,514 ,585) (4,9186,745)
1,055,874 1,072,237
2024 2023

YND million VND million
(478) (30,317)

- 17,612
{478) (12,705)

2024 2023

VIND million VND million
468,389 821,095
{177,090) (311,511)
{17,808) 2,228
273,491 511,812




Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

30.

31.

32.

NET GAINS/(LOSSES) FROM OTHER OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Other operating income

Other operating expenses
Net gains/(losses) from other operating
activities

INCOME FROM CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION, SHARE PURCHASE

Dividends distributed from long-term investments
and capital contributions

Income from capital contribution, share
purchase

OPERATING EXPENSES

Tax expenses, fees and charges

Personnel expenses

Salaries, bonus and allowances
Salary-related allowances
Subsidies

Others

Asset expenses
Includes: Depreciation and amortization

Administrative expenses

Includes:

- Per diem expenses

- Credit institutions’ mass acfivities expenses

Insurance expenses for customer deposits

Provision charged/{reversed) (excluding
provision for on- and off-statement of
financial position credit risks; provision for
diminution in value of securities)
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2024 2023

VYND million VND million
1,869,859 610,169
{577,625) {709,697)
1,292,234 {99,528)
2024 2023

VND million VND miifion
- 1,631

- 1,631

2024 2023

VND million VYND million
92,586 87,993
2,901,850 2,838,027
2,523,672 2,498,722
228,952 215,854
59,741 59,186
89,485 64,265
803,478 639,932
101,657 100,262
1,317,058 1,150,713
82,903 65,405
2,095 2,402
109,952 95,736
5,011 (70)
5,229,935 4,812,331




Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

33.

CORPORATE INCOME TAX (“CIT”) EXPENSES

Profit before tax

Adjustments

- Non-taxable income

- Non-deductible expenses

- Movements of temporary differences

- Non-taxable consolidated adjustments
(Goodwill, disposal of assets)

Taxahie income incurred during the year
Include:
- Income from operating activities

Tax rate

CIT expenses
Include:
- CIT expenses from operating activities

Adjustments of prior periods’ CIT expenses
CIT incurred during the year

CIT paid in previous years

CIT must be paid during the year

CIT payable at the beginning of the year
CIT paid during the year

CIT payable at the end of the year

Deferred CIT expenses
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2024 2023

YIND milffion VND million
6,903,842 5,829,910
(31) (1,631}

7,226 4793
(126,987) (36,420)
9,882 9,730
6,794,032 5,806,382
6,794,032 5,806,382
20% 20%
1,358,806 1,161,277
1,358,806 1,161,277
25,659 24,369
1,384;465 1,185,646
- (7,165}
1,384,465 1,178,481
602,675 820,535
(1,224,544) (1,396,341)
762,196 602,675
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BO5/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended
34. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Bank.

2024 2023
(Restated)
Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary
shareholders (VND million) 5,519,377 4,844,214
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(shares} (*) 2,600,000,000 2,600,000,000
Basic earnings per share (VND/share) 2,123 1,786

(*) The weighted average of ordinary shares outstanding in 2023 is adjusted for comparison
purpose because the Bank increases its charter capital in 2024 through the issuance of
shares to pay dividends at the rate of 30%.

35. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated cash flow statement comprise the
following amounts on the consolidated statement of financial position:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

VIND million VIND million
Cash and cash equivalents 1,203,088 939,629
Balances with the SBV 5,494,784 4,589,199
Demand deposit with other Cls 14,765,040 13,813,835
Piacements with other Cls with original terms of
3 months or less 39,514,000 37,570,774
60,976,912 56,913,537

36. ASSETS, VALUABLE PAPERS USED FOR MORTGAGE, DISCOUNT AND REDISCOUNT

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

VIND million VND million

immovables 209,077,832 141,598,463
Movables 17,799,754 10,667,281
Valuable papers 65,184,457 56,394,481
Other assets 223,282,461 268,115,355
515,354,504 476,775,580
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Vietham Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

37, EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATIONS

BO5/TCTD-HN

I. Total average number of employees
{person)

IIl. Employees’ remuneration

1. Total salary fund and bonus

Total income

2
3. Average monthly salary
4

Average monthly income

2024 2023

VND million VND million
6,693 6,731
2,667,187 2,325,588
2,668,472 2,327,667
33.21 28.79

33.22 28.82

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

VIND million VND million
Credit guarantees 183,030 21,980
Foreign exchange commitments 479,800,332 343,840,786
Spot foreign exchange commitments - buy 11,749,712 11,263,221
Spot foreign exchange commitments - sell 11,751,127 11,255,288
Cross currency swap contracts 456,299,493 321,322,277
Letters of credit 3,135,897 7,555,360
Letters of credit 3,645,336 7,865,215
- Less: Margin deposits {409,439) (309,855)
Other guarantees 24,893,161 21,686,263
Settlement guarantees 4,330,878 3,343,207
Contract performance guarantees 5,784,610 5,332,633
Bid guarantees 1,512,805 913,928
Other guarantees 14,248,401 12,934,764
- Less: Margin deposits {983,533) (838,269)

20,300,893 11,326,387

Other commitments
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Vietham Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

38.

40.

41.

UNCOLLECTED INTERESTS AND FEE RECEIVABLES

Uncollected loan interest
Uncollected securities interest
Uncollected receivable fees

BAD DEBTS WRITTEN OFF

Principal of the bad debts written off is under
monitoring

Interest of the bad debts written off is under
monitoring

Other bad debts written off

OTHER ASSETS AND DOCUMENTS

Other assets kept nominalily
Assets under operating leases
Other valuable documents are being preserved

45
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31 December 2023

VND million YND miilion
1,516,069 1,445,389
28,791 643,691

59 58
1,544,919 2,089,139

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

VIND million VND milfion
5,054 416 5,615,707
10,484,253 10,001,777
31,979 31,980
15,570,648 15,649,464

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

VND million VND million
16,648,280 17,789,628

- 4,892
77,854 670 65,882,342
94,502,930 83,676,862
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BO5/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

42,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions include all transactions undertaken with other parties to which the
Bank is related. A party is considered to be related if the party has ability to control or to
influence other parties in making decision of financial policies and operaticnal activities. A

party is related to the Bank if:
(a) Directly, or indirectly through cne or more intermediaries, the party:

» Controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Bank (including
parents and subsidiaries);

» Has an interest in the Bank that gives it significant influence over the Bank;
» Has joint control over the Bank.
(b) The party is a joint venture in which the Bank is a venture or an associate,
(c) The party is a member of the key management personnel of the Bank;
(d) The party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (c); or
(

e) The party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or
for which significant voting power in such company resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (c) or {d).

Details of significant balances with related parties at the end of the year are as follows:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Receivables/(Payables) Receivables/{Payables)

VND milfion VND miflion
Vietnam Posts and Telecommunications Group (“VNPT") - Major shareholder
Demand deposits (6,607) (3,638)
Term deposits - {1,555,000)
Other payables - {21,884)
ROX Group JSC — Related party of the Board of Directors
Demand deposits (8,515) (3,588)
Term deposits (760) -
Interest payables on deposits {(2) -
lLoans 35 48
FamilyMart Vietnam JSC — Related party of the Board of Directors
Demand deposits (705) (381)
Loans 17 13
ROX Key Holdings JSC - Related party of the Board of Directors
Demand deposits (12,738) {20,735)
Term deposits - (203,000)
Interest payables “ (42)
ROX Asset JSC - Related party of the Board of Directors
Demand deposits (449} (336)
Loans - 9
ROX Living JSC ~ Related party of the Board of Directors
Demand deposits (437) (2,086)
Loans 5 15
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

42,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of significant balances with related parties at the end of the year are as follows
{continued):

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Receivables/(Payables) Receivables/(Payables)
YND million VND million

Members of the Board of Directors, Board of Management, Board of Supervision and related
individuals

Demand deposits (60,977) (549,608)
Term deposits (13,085) (87,950}
Loans 273,118 202,192
Interest and fee receivables 2,010 1,311
Interest and other payables (645) (4,672)

Details of significant transactions with related parties during the year are as follows:

2024 2023
VYND miilion VND million

Vietnam Posts and Telecommunications Group (“VNPT”) — Major shareholder

interest expenses on deposits (73,698) (164,886)
Term deposits from related party - 1,714,560
Term deposits withdrawal 1,555,000 2,609,560
ROX Group JSC — Related party of the Board of Directors

Interest expenses on deposits (14) {6)
Fee income 8 38
Interest income from loans 20 1
Term deposits from related party 760 -
FamilyMart Vietnam JSC — Related party of the Board of Directors

Interest expenses on deposits (2) M
ROX Key Holdings JSC ~ Related party of the Board of Directors

Interest expenses on deposits (36} (47)
Interest income from loans 2 -
Fee income and other income 54 -
Term deposits withdrawal 203,000 -
Term deposits from related party - 203,000
ROX Asset JSC - Related party of the Board of Directors _

Interest expenses on deposits (1) (3)
ROX Living JSC ~ Related party of the Board of Directors

Interest expenses on deposits (3) -
Fee income 2 -
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

42,

43.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of significant transactions with related parties during the year are as follows
(continued):

2024 2023
VND miflion VND million

Members of the Board of Directors, Board of Management, Board of Supervision and
related individuals

Remunerations of the Board of Directors {14,203) (15,039}
Chairman - -
Vice - Chairman 1 {806) (3,230)
Vice - Chairman 2 (3,035} -
Vice - Chairman 3 {2,196) (2,936)
Member 1 {2,584) (2,585)
Member 2 {1,921) (2,827)
Member 3 {2,036) (1,868)
Member 4 (1,625) {1,592)
Remunerations of the Board of Supervision {5,496) (5,071)
Salaries of the Chief Executive Officer and

Deputy Chief Executive Officers (39,753) (34,608)
Interest income from loans 22,274 19,262
Interest expenses on deposits and valuable

paper issued (19,469) (39,211)
Fee income 364 252

CONCENTRATION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND OFF-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION ITEMS BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGIONS

Credit granting Fund mobilized Denvative
(loans to  (deposits from instruments Trading and
customers and customers, Credit  (Tofal contract investment
other Cls)  due to banks) commitments  nominal value) securities
VND million VND million VND miflion VND million VND million
Domestic 184,964,415 213,939,112 28,212,088 227,164,381 65,604,781
Cverseas - 471,529 - - -
Total 184,964,415 214,410,641 28,212,088 227,164,381 65,604,781
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BO5S/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

44,

44.1

44.1.1

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Bank's business goal is to be a multi-functional financial institution. Accordingly, the Bank
provides a variety of products and services to its customers in order to achieve the above goal
and at the same time ensure the expected profit. The utilization of financial instruments,
including fund mobilization (customer deposits and valuable papers issued) and investments
of these funds in high-quality assets, which is the core of the Bank's activities, helps it achieve
its profit goal but also incur risks that need to be managed closely. The Bank manages ifs
risks through the use of limits in order to proactively managing risks and implementing
preventive measures/tools in order to reduce risks. Through holding a large proportion of high-
quality financial instruments, the statement of financial position structure of the Bank is
adequate to avoid significant exposures within the scope of its operations and manage its

liquidity position.

In managing credit risk, the Bank has fully issued and effectively applied documents on credit
risk management with details on lending policies, procedures and implementation instructions
standardizing the Bank’s credit activities. Liquidity risks are controiled and managed through
management instruments for liquidity risks such as holding a high proportion of assets as a
large base of cash and cash equivalents in the form of Nostro accounts, balances with the
SBY, placements with other Cls and especially highly liquid valuable papers. The risk-
weighted ratios are also used to manage the Bank’s liquidity. The Bank frequently assesses
its interest rate gaps, compares them with those in domestic and international markets, and
then applies appropriate adjustments timely. In addition, the effective implementation of a
number of the Bank's risk management has been enhanced by the deployment of the
Centralized Capital Management and the Centralized Payment System, in which the Bank's
capital and payment transactions are solely performed by the Head Office. This helps
monitoring the Bank's funds movements more effectively, efficiently, and reduces possible
errors and unnecessarily complexities,

Market risk
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of adverse fluctuations in interest rates on income, assets, liabilities
and off - statement of financial position commitments of the Bank, arising from:

» Differences between the year of fixing new interest rate or redefining interest rate,

» Changes in relationship between interest rates of various financial instruments with the
same maturity date;

» Changes in relationship between interest rates at different maturities;

» Influences from interest rate options, products with interest rate options elements.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

44,

44.1

44.1.1

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interast rate risk (continued)

The Bank maintains an interest rate risk management policy that ensures the following
principles:

B

Complying with the regulations of the SBV and its internal regulations on the internal
control system over interest rate risk management;

Periodically measuring; Strictly monitoring and controlling potential interest rate risks in
the Bank's key business operations (including assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
commitments); thereby fully implementing measures to balance assets-liabilities
structure; and/or preventive measures to minimize the Bank’s exposures against adverse
fluctuations in market interest rates;

Establishing minimum limits for interest rate risk management on the interest rate re-
pricing period; sensitivity, change in net interest and similar income and change in
economic value of owners’ equity based on stress test results in normal scenarios and
adverse scenarios.

Principles for classifying and measuring interest rate risk status through the gap of interest
rate re-pricing period of Asset; Liability items located on and off-statement of financial position
(illustrated on Note 44.1.1) meet the following contents:

b

-

Interest-sensitive items (assets, liabilities) are those whose income/expenses/prices
change when interest rates change;

Non-interest bearing items (non-interest rate sensitive) include but are not limited to: cash,
gold, silver, gemstones, balances with the SBV, securities held for trading, premiums,
discounts, interest and fees receivable, long-term investments, fixed assets, investment
securities (equity securities), other assets, other non-interest-bearing debt and overdue
portion of asset items;

Overdue indicators of asset items are cash flows that are overdue and/or classified as
Group 2 or higher according to CIC;

Interest sensitive items are aliocated to periods on the report based on the actual interest
rate re-pricing period of each transaction arising in the item;

The actual term used for determining interest rate is the year of time (number of days)
from the end of the accounting pericd until the interest rate re-adjustment date (the
interest rate re-pricing date) or the due date/partial due date according to the contract of
the financial assets and liabilities, whichever comes first. Details are as follows:

ltems that are sensitive to interest rates but whose interest rate re-pricing period
cannot be specifically determined (deposits/demand deposits from Cls, economic
entities and individuals, overdrafts, credit cards) will be recorded in the year closest
on report (up to 1 month);

items with floating interest rate: the actual interest rate repricing term is calculated
from the end of the accounting period until the interest rate re-pricing date or maturity
date/partial due date according to the contract, whichever comes first;

. The interest-sensitive items of other assets and liabilities which have fixed interest

rate: the actual interest rate re-pricing term is calculated from the end of the
accounting period until maturity date/partial due date according to the contract.
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

44,

44.1

44.1.2

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Currency risk

BOS/TCTD-HN

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to fluctuations

in foreign exchange rates.

The Bank is incorporated and operates in Vietnam with VND as its reporting currency. The
major currency of its transaction is also VND. Asset - liability structure of the Bank includes
different foreign currencies such as USD, EUR, JPY,... which is the cause of currency risk.

The Bank maintains a currency risk management policy that ensures the following principles:
» Complying with the regulations of the SBV and its internal regulations on the internal

control system over foreign exchange risk management;

» Measuring on a daily basis; strictly monitor and control foreign exchange risks on the
basis of ensuring compliance with established limits (in accordance with the SBV's
regulations) on foreign currency positions; potential profit/loss; concentration levels by
currency which are based on stress test results in normal scenarios and adverse

scenarios.
Cther foreign
EUR UsD currencies
equivalent equivalent equivalent Total

VND million VND million YND million VND million
Asset
Cash, gold and gemstones 13,144 275,433 40,082 328,659
Balances with the SBY 1,430 827,517 - 828,647
Due from banks (*) 69,278 1,193,875 216,817 1,479,970
Derivative financial
instruments 61,105 319,649 - 380,754
Loans to customers (*) 10,239 9,107,456 805 9,118,500
Other assets (*) 164 152,066 4,791 157,021
Total assets 155,060 11,875,996 262 495 12,293,551
Liabilities
Borrowing from the
Government and the SBV - 8,589 - 8,599
Due to banks 26,587 10,391,333 34,093 10,452,013
Customer deposits 106,992 6,191,385 129,161 6,427,538
Derivative financial
instruments - - 673,141 673,141
Other liabilities (%) 10,554 535,437 66,068 612,059
Total liabilities and
owner's equity 144,133 17,126,754 902,463 18,173,350
FX position on statement
of financial position 10,927 (5,250,758) {639,968) {5,879,799)
FX position off-statement
of financial position 532 1,604,318 704,381 2,309,231
Net on, off-statement of
financial position 11,459 (3,646,440) 64,413 (3,570,568)

(*) balances of these items do not include risk provision
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as ai 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

44,

44.2

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due, or the risk that the Bank has to pay cost higher than the average cost of the market
under the Bank's internal regulations in order to meet those obligations.

The Bank has maintained a liquidity risk management policy that ensures the following
principles:

»

Complying with the regulations of the SBV and its internal regulations on the internal
control system over liquidity risk management. It has outstanding organizational structure
of 3 lines of defense; in which the first line is managed in parallel by 02 functions: Balance
Sheet Management (BSM) and Asset Liability Management (ALM) on a daily basis;

Always maintaining a portfolio of highly liquid assets which are managed according to
market value and ability to convert into cash to ensure liquidity required under normal and
stressed conditions;

Managing and monitoring intraday liquidity; identifying funding sources and ability fo
mobilize these sources to meet daily payment needs; forecasting situations that cause
abnormal changes in liquidity during the day and implementing timely and effective
handling measures;

Always focus on diversifying funding sources, ensuring ability to access the active market
and understanding the correlation of credit risk, market risk and other key risks that impact

on the its liquidity;
Establishing liquidity risk management limits in accordance with the SBV's regulations

and issue a contingency funding plan (CFP) based on the results of a liquidity stress test
in a normal scenarios and adverse scenarios;

Using internal fund transferring price and liquidity premium component (Liquidity
Premium) in the internal fund transfer pricing mechanism (FTF) flexibly to regulate
fiquidity and term structure in each period.

Principles for classifying and measuring liquidity risk status through the raturity table of
assets and liabilities recorded on the statement of financial position as follows!

b

The maturity terms of assets and liabilities represent the remaining period of assets and
liabilities as calculated from the consalidated financial statements date to the maturity
date/partial maturity date in accordance with contractual terms and conditions.

The following assumptions and conditions are adopted in the analysis of maturity of the
Bank's assets and liabilities:

+ Balances with the SBV including compulsory reserves are considered highly liquid
and can be transferred immediately within 1 month;

v The maturity of securities is calculated based on investment purposes:

. Securities held for trading; available-for-sale securities, which are listed on the stock
exchanges or registered on the unlisted stock market, are considered highly liquid
and can be transferred immediately within 1 month;,

- Other types of investment securities are allocated based on the contractual maturity
date of each kind of securities;

The maturity of fixed asset investments, capital contribution and share purchase are
considered fong-term because these investments do not have specific maturity date;
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

44,

44.2

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued}
Liquidity risk (continued)

» The maturity of due from banks, due fo banks, loans to customers and customer deposits
are based on the contractual maturity date/partial maturity date. The actual maturity date
can be adjusted from confractual term when the contract is extended. In fact, demand
and term deposits of customers may be rotated, and therefore, lasting beyond the original
maturity date;

p  The maturity of loans to customers from debts purchased is determined based on the due
date of the loan contract as prescribed;

» The maturity of derivative contracts (Swap, Forward) is determined based on the
contractual term of the transaction net basis of clearing between cash inflows and

oufflows;

» The maturity of other assets and other liabilities is classified according to the payment
characteristics of each item.

» For assets and Habilities whose expected payment date/due date cannot be determined,
the Bank determines the maturity date according to the conservatism principle.
Accordingly, it is considered fong-term (over 1 year) for cash inflows and short term {less
than 3 months) for cash outflows.

Classification of assets and liabilities according to the original term prescribed in contracts or
in the issuance term is as follows:
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

45, SUPPLEMENTAL NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANACIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DEGEMBER 2024 (CIRCULAR 16/2018/TT-BTC DATED 7

FEBRUARY 2018)

Summary of items:

31 December 2024

‘7“‘.‘?“ m i% i

N

Total assets (VND million) 320,177,143
Equity (VND million) 36,817,557
Capital (VND rnillion) 35,692,582
- Tier I capital (VND million) 36,812,308
- Tier I capital (VND million) (1,218,490)
- Other deductions (VND million) (1,.236)
Right weighted assets (VND million) 287,379,717
Capital adequacy ratio 12.39%
Charter capital (VND million) 26,000,000
PAT/ Average of equity (ROE) 15.97%
PAT/ Average of assets (ROA) 1.85%
Separate credit growth rate 18.25%
Capital growth rate 18.13%
Separate ratio of short-term capital used for medium and long-term

loans 28.27%
Total amount of capital contribution and share purchase in

enterprises (VND million) 75,778
Ratio of total outstanding loans to total deposits 73.69%
Ratio of bad debts to total outstanding loans 1.90%
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Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

46. EXCHANGE RATES OF APPLICABLE FOREIGN CURRENCIES AND GOLD AGAINST
VIETNAM DONG AT THE END OF THE YEAR

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

VND VND
usb 25,400 24,228
EUR 26,578 26,930
GBP 32,534 30,940
CHF 28,305 28,833
JRY 161 172
SGD 18,747 18,399
CAD 17,950 18,380
AUD ' 15,876 16,630
Prepared by: Reviewed by: S
//
Ms. Nguyen Bao Ngoc Ms. Phung Thuy Nhung ’f¢ MS AN L@en Thi Thu Hang
Financial Reporting Manager Chief Accountant “HeEd of Financial Management

Hanoi, Vietnam

AN January 2025
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